
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
July 23, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
(b) Introduction of Dr. Ron Cantor, President of SMCC Midcoast Campus 
 
(c) Nomination Papers availability 
 
(d) Election of MMA Vice President and Executive Committee Members (Action Required) 
 
(e) Tree work relative to Amtrak coming to Brunswick 
 
(f) Permission to apply for Safe Routes to School Grant (Action Required) 
 
(g) Support for a grant application for the Androscoggin Riverwalk (Action Required):   
 
(h) Permission to apply for MDOT as a joint application with the City of Bath and Town of 

West Bath to expand the bike path to Bath (Action Required) 
 
(i) Update on the traffic/pedestrian improvements at Bath Road and Maine Street 
 
(j) Discussion of August Council meeting schedule 
 
  



2 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
86. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special Amusement 

License application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
Bowdoin College    Allen W. Delong 
D/B/A: Bowdoin College Dining Service – Magee’s Grill 
David Saul Smith Union 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
87. The Town Council will consider requesting the Planning Board to review the Zoning 

Ordinance to create amendments to allow office use at 28 Federal Street once it is no 
longer a municipal building, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  

ACTION 
 
88. The Town Council will consider providing nominations to the Governor’s Office for the 

MRRA Board of Directors, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair King, Councilor 
Tucker) 

ACTION 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of July 9, 2012 
(b) Release deed to Boulay Properties, LLC 
(c) Approval of “A Standing Order Authorizing the Treasurer to Issue Declarations of 

Official Intent on Behalf of the Town of Brunswick, Maine” 
(d) Approval of an application ULP 2012-05, Pleasant Street & Stanwood Street 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 

(TDD 725-5521) 
 

  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

July 23, 2012 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion required 
 
(b) Introduction of Dr. Ron Cantor, President of SMCC Midcoast Campus:  This item 

introduces Dr. Ron Cantor to the Council and the public.  He will provide a brief update 
on SMCC activities. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion required 

 
(c) Nomination Papers availability:  Nomination papers for Town Council and School Board 

will be available starting on Friday, July 27th, and need to be returned no later than 
Friday, September 7th.  Districts 3, 4 and one At-Large seat for both the Town Council 
and School Board will be up for election in November. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion required 

 
(d) Election of MMA Vice President and Executive Committee Members (Action Required):  

The Council will vote for the MMA Vice-President and Executive Committee Members.  
There are no contested races.  A copy of the information from MMA is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve the slate of nominations for the MMA Vice President and Executive 
Committee Members as presented on the voting ballot. 

 
(e) Tree work relative to Amtrak coming to Brunswick:  This item is to update the Council 

and the public on tree work necessary to provide adequate visibility of the train by 
motorists, particularly at street and road crossings.  Copies of a memo Manager Brown, 
state statute references, and aerial maps are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion required 

 
(f) Permission to apply for MDOT Transportation Enhancement and/or Safe Routes to 

School grant through the Quality Community Program (Actions Required):  At your May 
7th meeting you gave permission to submit a Letter of Intent to apply for a MDOT Safe 
Routes to School grant.  Based on a site visit by MDOT, the Town is ready to take the 
next step of applying for the grant.  The proposed revised project is to provide and install 
a pedestrian activated crosswalk flashing beacon system at four crosswalks to improve 



4 
 

overall bike and pedestrian safety and for children walking or biking to school for an 
estimated cost of $125,000.   

 
The Town was encouraged by MDOT to submit an application for consideration under 
both the Transportation Enhancement Program and Safe Routes to School Program.  A 
20% local match is required under the Transportation Enhancement Program with 
assistance being provided in securing funding by concerned citizens.  No local match is 
required under the Safe Routes to School Program.  If successful, funding will not be 
available until mid-2014.  Copies of a memo from the Planning and Development 
Department Director and the draft grant application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motions: 
Motion to apply for a MDOT Transportation Enhancement and Safe Routes to School 
grant. 
OR 
Motion to apply for a MDOT Safe Routes to School grant. 

 
(g) Support for a grant application for the Androscoggin Riverwalk (Action Required):  This 

item requests permission to apply for a grant for the Riverwalk under the Quality 
Community Programs.  This grant is from MDOT Federal Transportation Enhancements 
Funding.  The State/Federal Share of the total project cost 80%; the local share of the 
total project cost 20% with the local share to be raised by the Riverwalk committee.  
Nancy Randolph will be at your meeting to answer any questions. Copies of materials 
from Ms. Randolph are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion for the Town of Brunswick to support a grant application for the Androscoggin 
Brunswick-Topsham Riverwalk project in partnership with the Town of Topsham. 

 
(h) Permission to apply for MDOT as a joint application with the City of Bath and Town of 

West Bath to expand the bike path to Bath (Action Required):  This grant is for the 
Androscoggin to Kennebec (A2K) Multi-use path proposal to connect the eastern end of 
the Androscoggin River Bicycle Path (located at the end of Grover Lane in Brunswick) to 
the western end of the multi-use path on Congress Street in Bath, generally running east-
to-west along the existing Route 1 right of way, using MDOT Federal Transportation 
Enhancements Funding.  An application would be submitted for the purpose of 
subsidizing the preliminary design of the project corridor with the expectation that no 
local match will be required.  This particular segment of a longer corridor is being 
considered as a trail of statewide significance and as such would require no local match.  
Copies of a memo from Tom Farrell, a draft application, draft letter of support and other 
supporting materials are included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to authorize a letter of support, and to be a joint applicant for the MDOT grant 
application for the expansion of the Bike Path.  

  



5 
 

 
(i) Update on the traffic/pedestrian improvements at Bath Road and Maine Street:  This item 

is to update the public on these improvements. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion required 
 

(j) Discussion of August Council meeting schedule:  This item is to discuss if the Council 
wishes not to hold any Council meetings in August. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion required 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
86. This item is the required public hearing and approval of a renewal special amusement 

license for Magee’s Grill at Bowdoin College.  They are requesting student bands, 
comedians, acoustic performers, and DJ’s.  Copies of the public hearing notice and 
application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve a special amusement license for Magee’s Grill at Bowdoin College. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
87. This item is for the Council to request the Planning Board to review the Zoning 

Ordinance to create amendments to allow office use at 28 Federal Street once it is no 
longer a municipal building.  The proposal from the BDC to exchange the 
Pleasant/Stanwood Street properties for the current Town Office stipulates that the 
current use (office building) be allowed to continue after the municipal offices are 
moved.  Currently, under the Zoning Ordinance this use would not be allowed.  The first 
step to change the ordinance is to have the Planning Board review and make 
recommendations to the Council.  Copies of memos from Manager Brown and the 
Planning Office are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to request the Planning Board review the Zoning Ordinance to create 
amendments to allow office use at 28 Federal Street once it is no longer a municipal 
office and to make recommendations to the Council. 

 
88. This item is to consider nominations to the MRRA board to be considered by the 

Governor’s Office.  Council leadership is recommending Denise Clavette.  A memo from 
Manager Brown is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to provide the nomination of Denise Clavette to the Governor’s Office to be 
considered for appointment to the MRRA Board of Directors. 

 
  



6 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Approval of the Minutes of July 9, 2012:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
 
(b) Release deed to Boulay Properties, LLC:  In the process of refinancing, it was discovered 

that the Town had an undischarged tax lien on the property referenced in the release 
deed.  A few years ago, the Town of Brunswick, Terrace Place, LLC and Boulay 
Properties, LLC, agreed to certain rights and easements related to this property.  An 
indenture dated May 22, 2007 was recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds 
in Book 25222, Page 63.  Those rights and easements are retained with this release deed.  
The release deed was prepared by Bernstein Shur.  A copy of the release deed is included 
in your packet. 

 
(c) Approval of “A Standing Order Authorizing the Treasurer to Issue Declarations of 

Official Intent on Behalf of the Town of Brunswick, Maine”:  The Internal Revenue 
Service requires a borrower, that intends to reimburse itself for certain expenditures from 
the proceeds of a tax-exempt bond issue, adopt a Declaration of Official Intent prior to 
those expenditures.  Typically, the Town has declared its intent to reimburse itself at the 
time it adopts a bond ordinance or some other funding mechanism (e.g. resolution).  The 
Town has also issued stand-alone declarations in the past when expenditures have 
occurred prior to the adoption of a bond ordinance.   

 
This proposed order would authorize the treasurer to file a declaration of intent whenever 
the treasurer believes the Town will incur reimbursable expenditures.  This order does not 
authorize any borrowing or funding.  It simply allows the treasurer to declare that the 
Town intends to issue tax-exempt bonds and that the Town intends to reimburse itself for 
certain expenditures once the bonds have been issued.  The order was drafted in 
consultation with bond counsel at Bernstein Shur.   A copy of the resolution is included 
in your packet. 

 
(d) Approval of an application ULP 2012-05, Pleasant Street & Stanwood Street:   FairPoint 

seeks authorization to install an underground telecommunication duct from a utility pole 
on Stanwood Street.  The utility pole will be installed at the southeast corner of the 
laundromat, to a telecommunication manhole located in the sidewalk on Pleasant Street. 
There will be about 173 feet of duct on Stanwood Street and about 300 feet of new duct 
on Pleasant Street. Installation of this telecommunication duct is a result of the Town’s 
request for redesign of the Pleasant Street and Stanwood Street intersection associated 
with construction of the new Police Station.  Copies of a memo from Public Works and 
the application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 













 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 















 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT – F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
July18, 2012 
 
To:  Brunswick Town Council 

Gary Brown, Town Manager 
From:  Anna Breinich, AICP 
Subject: Draft MDOT Quality Community Program Transportation Enhancement and Safe 

Routes to School 2012 Application 
 
The draft 2012 Transportation Enhancement/Safe Routes to School (TE/SRTS) funding request 
for submittal to the MDOT Quality Community Program is attached for your review and 
consideration.   With Council’s approval, the application will be finalized and submitted by the 
August 3rd deadline.  The proposed project is to install up to four pedestrian activated flashing 
beacon systems, at locations to be determined, to improve overall bike and pedestrian safety and 
for children walking or biking to school.  As part of your decision, Council must also decide 
whether to submit for both TE (20% local match requirement) and SRTS funding, or as 
originally proposed in the Letter of Intent, only SRTS funding with no local match required. 
 
As you may recall, at your May 7th meeting, Town Council authorized staff to submit a Letter of 
Intent to MDOT.  The proposed request at that time for SRTS funding, to install safe routes to 
school-based pedestrian activated flashing crosswalk systems at five specific intersections at a 
cost of $125,000, was brought forward by a group of concerned citizens and supported by the 
Brunswick Bike and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BBPAC).   
 
As part of the MDOT application process, site visits were scheduled with all interested 
communities to discuss and provide guidance regarding proposed projects.  Staff, Councilor 
Brayman and community members met with Dan Stewart, MDOT Quality Community Program 
Manager on June 13th at which time, Mr. Stewart offered Brunswick free technical assistance to 
complete a general bike and pedestrian plan under MDOT existing contracts with approved 
consulting agencies.  Such a plan would be focused on the Downtown area and surrounding 
neighborhoods and include deficiency analysis to identify intersections in need of safer 
crosswalks.  The resultant plan would give the Town a solid basis to install crosswalk 
improvements at intersections having the greatest deficiencies.  The plan would also identify and 
recommend improvements to provide students a safe route to school, connecting the town’s 
many neighborhoods and schools.  As the planning effort cannot be started prior to September, 
Mr. Stewart recommended that our request be worded to reference the Town’s intent to complete 
the study and the four locations for crosswalk improvements would be based on its findings.  All 
present at the meeting agreed with this approach as reflected in the attached application.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 
BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 

 

 

ANNA M. BREINICH, AICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 



To increase the Town’s funding probability, Mr. Stewart also recommended requesting funds 
under both the federally-funded Transportation Enhancement Program, as well as the originally 
submitted request for Safe Routes to School Program funds.  TE funding availability is much 
higher than that for the SRTS Program.  However, TE funding requires a 20% match in either 
cash or in-kind services, specifically $25,000 would be the required Town match.  SRTS does 
not have any local match requirements.  The Town presently does not have a local match in 
place.  Staff requested the assistance of Melissa Fochesato, who has volunteered to help prepare 
the application, to secure the local match.  You will note in the draft application that the local 
matches identified by Ms. Fochesato must still be confirmed and dollar amounts attached.   
Council will need to decide whether to submit under both funding programs or one as part of 
authorization. 
 
The draft application as attached will be further enhanced with supporting documentation as 
noted.  I have also requested Ms. Fochesato’s assistance in securing letters of support.   
 
 
 



 

MaineDOT Quality Community Program 
Transportation Enhancement & Safe Routes 

 
For potential inclusion in fiscal years 2014-2015 Biennial Capital Work Plan 

 
 
           DRAFT 

2012 Application 
Section 1: General Information 
 
Applicant Name(s): Town of Brunswick 

Contact Person: John Foster, PE, Town Engineer, Public Works Director 

Mailing Address: 28 Federal Street 

City: Brunswick State: ME Zip: 04011 

Daytime Phone No.: 207-725-6654 Email: jfoster@brunswickme.org  

Please place an (x) next to all the programs your project is eligible for: 
  Federal Transportation Enhancement (TE) Program (If you have committed to minimum 20% local match) 
  Federal Safe Routes to School Program (if within 2 miles of a K-8 school and will improve safety for 

children) 
 
Please Note: If Safe Routes to School is checked, the community agrees to conduct a before and after project 
count of pedestrians and bicyclists traveling to and from school, as well as to engage with the Maine Safe 
Routes to School Program on safety education and encouragement initiatives. 
 
NOTE: The following sections of this application request specific project-related information. If warranted, pictures, 
maps, exhibits, diagrams, survey summaries, etc., should be included with the application. Please be concise. If 
additional space is required, please attach supplemental sheets. 

 
Section 2: Project Information 
Note: Separate complete application(s) are required for each different project proposal 
 
Location of Project: Provide street name(s), beginning and ending location(s), and additional relevant project 
location information. Attach designs/ diagrams, maps, etc. that will help provide a clear description of the proposed 
scope and location.  If possible, divide proposed project into logical sections if project can potentially proceed in 
steps: 
 
The proposed project, the installation of 4 pedestrian activated flashing crosswalk warning systems, will be located 
at yet to be determined intersections.  As recommended by Dan Stewart, MDOT Quality Community Program 
Manager, during the Brunswick Letter of Intent Site Visit, Brunswick has requested MDOT contracted technical 
assistance to complete a general bike and pedestrian plan for Downtown Brunswick and surrounding 
neighborhoods.  The plan will also identify student travel routes from these areas to the Harriett Beecher Stowe 
Elementary School (opened September 2011) and determine deficient intersections in need of crosswalk 
improvements.  It is anticipated that the planning process will commence September 2012 and be completed within 
a 6-9 month timeframe, thereby providing the specific locations for crosswalk upgrades. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Application
Received 

 
 

(For MaineDOT Use 
Only 



 
 
Project Summary (Outline proposed improvements in 30 words or less):  
 
Provide and install a pedestrian activated crosswalk flashing beacon system at four crosswalks to improve overall 
bike and pedestrian safety and for children walking or biking to school.   
 
 
 
Describe the proposed scope of the improvements:  
 
A flashing beacon warning system will be provided and installed at four crosswalk locations.  The warning system 
will be solar powered and will have pedestrian activated push buttons to turn on the flashing beacons.  All 
crosswalk locations will be improved to meet ADA requirements (curb drops and ramps, cast iron detectable 
warning fields). 
 
 
Describe in detail the ownership of the affected properties, whether all or part of the proposed project is in 
the public right of way, and how wide the estimated right of way is if on a public road system.  If the land of 
the proposed project is not along a public right of way or on public land, please describe any contact with 
landowner(s). 
 
The proposed project will be completed within town and state public rights-of-way.  If any crosswalk upgrades are 
proposed within state rights-of-way (e.g., Maine Street), the Town will consult with MDOT prior to commencement 
of work.  
 
 
 
Describe the project(s) transportation value(s) and purpose(s):  Each project should serve primarily 
transportation purposes, as opposed to recreation purposes. A project serves valid transportation purposes if it 
serves as a connection between origins and destinations, increases safety, and/or relates directly to the 
transportation system.     
 
This project serves transportation purposes by providing safe street crossings for all bicyclists and pedestrians in 
Downtown Brunswick and its surrounding neighborhoods.  The project will also safely connect several surrounding 
neighborhoods (within 2 miles) to the recently opened Harriet Beecher Stowe Elementary School (serving 660 
students in grades 2-5) via walking or biking. The Stowe Elementary School replaced 3 recently closed 
neighborhood-based elementary schools that were more easily accessible by students walking or biking to school 
from their respective neighborhoods.  This effort will begin to establish a safe route to school for elementary school 
students and is directly related to the transportation system of Brunswick by meeting a targeted objective of the 
Brunswick’s Bicycle Pedestrian Improvement Plan of 2004, which recommends that “. . . town staff work closely 
with the School Department and the Maine Department of Transportation to identify, prioritize and fund needed 
improvements through MDOT Safe Routes to School Program.". 
 
 
AB TO WEAVE IN 2010 CENSUS TRAVEL TO WORK COUNTS, CHANGING DEMOGRAPHICS, AVERAGE 
WALK SCORE FOR DOWNTOWN (98 out of 100) AND EXPAND 
 
 
 
Describe why this project is important to your community and region (if applicable): 
 
Through its Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan process, Brunswick has focused on improving 
pedestrian and vehicular movement in the Downtown area.  The Master Plan adopted by Town Council in January 
2011 contains specific recommendations to improve pedestrian and bicycling mobility and visibility of crosswalks.  
As a result of the Town’s obvious commitment to improve overall pedestrian and vehicular mobility, the Town was 
named a 2011 Context Sensitive Solutions Champion by the FHWA which resulted in the completion of a 
walkability study by a national team lead by the Project for Public Spaces and Walkable and Livable Communities 
Institute.  The recommendations generated by the walkability study have been merged with those of the downtown 
master plan. Implementation is overseen by the Town-appointed Master Plan Implementation Committee.  For 
example, during FY 2012-13, the Town Council budgeted for the installation of three raised crosswalks (2 crossing 



Maine Street; 1 crossing Pleasant Street).   This proposed project will continue the Town’s effort for increased bike 
and pedestrian safety.    
 
The Town of Brunswick experienced a significant change in the geographic location of elementary schools in 2010-
2011 with the closing of three K-5 elementary schools and the opening of a new elementary school – Harriett 
Beecher Stowe Elementary School.  Although the new school is located in neighborhood surrounding the 
Downtown and within 2 miles of other neighborhoods, a majority of students who once walked and biked to their 
local neighborhood school are now being transported by bus or car due to parental concerns with several required 
street crossings.  It is anticipated that the proposed crosswalk safety upgrades will be of benefit to students as 
well.   
 
AB TO INCORPORATE FOLLOWING TEXT FROM MELISSA FOCHESATO INTO ABOVE PARAGRAPHS OF 
THIS SECTION AND EXPAND. 
 
These improvements are important to the community of Brunswick because they will:  
 Contribute to the Town’s effort to build a safe environment that meets the transportation needs of all residents 

whether by foot, bike or motorized vehicle; 
 Meet a recommendation of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan to identify, prioritize and fund 

needed improvements through MDOTs Safe Routes to School Program; 
 Assist Brunswick in retaining its Bicycle Friendly Community designation by meeting the recommendation from 

the League of American Bicyclists to “expand Safe Routes to School Programs in every school;” 
 Return the choice of safely walking or biking to school to families who lost this choice with the opening of a 

new elementary school. 
.  
 
AB TO INCLUDE WEB LINKS TO DMP AND WALKABILITY REPORT. 
 
 
Describe the potential positive impacts on the community, including at a minimum (if applicable) 
improving safety, mobility, or transportation in general, and the local/regional economy:    
 
The proposed project will improve pedestrian and bike safety and mobility by creating safer, more accessible 
walking and biking connections for all residents and students, between the downtown, surrounding neighborhoods 
and within two miles of Harriet Beecher Stowe Elementary School. Combined with the strong walk and bike to 
school and physical activity campaign being conducted by Access Health, a local Healthy Maine Partnership, the 
Brunswick School Department and many strong parent advocates, these safer routes to Harriet Beecher Stowe 
elementary will also improve the health of our community by creating an infrastructure that supports daily 
physical activity of students and adults, which will help combat the rising overweight and obesity rates our town is 
facing.  This project will also enhance the implementation of key Town-approved plans, the Master Plan for 
Downtown Brunswick and Outer Pleasant Street Corridor and the Brunswick Walkability Report with the overall 
goal to better meet the mobility needs of all residents, and create a walkable and bikeable downtown that will 
connect consumers to our downtown, enhancing the local/regional economy. 
 
 
AB TO EDIT AND EXPAND TO INCLUDE EAST COAST GREENWAY TOURISM, DOWNEASTER 
 
 
 
Describe how the project brings new opportunities for public benefit, including clear descriptions of the 
people, neighborhoods, etc., and potential businesses that will benefit:  
 
It is anticipated that neighborhoods affect by recent elementary school closures, surrounding Jordan Acres, 
Hawthorne and Longfellow Schools will benefit due to improve safe walkable and bikeable access to the Stowe 
Elementary School.  MCKEEN STREET HOUSING CONNECTION? 
 
Overall, the general public will considerably benefit from the installation of more visible, pedestrian activated 
crosswalks at high deficiency locations.  It was repeatedly noted during public sessions held as part of the Master 
Plan and Walkability Study process that people did not “feel safe” when crossing Maine Street and other streets in 
Downtown Brunswick.  Downtown businesses saw this as a deterrent to shop in Downtown Brunswick.   
 
As mentioned previously, the Town Council has authorized funding to install raised crosswalks in 3 downtown 
locations.  The installation of crosswalk improvements to an additional 4 high deficiency locations will continue to 



encourage walking and biking in the Downtown area and provide safer mobility for those visiting and living in 
Brunswick. 
 
AB TO INCLUDE DOWNEASTER  
 
 
 
Describe any environmental permitting and/or design needed, completed or under way and any potential 
issues, and timeline(s):  
 
There are no known environmental impacts and no state or local permits needed.  The flashing beacon crosswalk 
systems will be installed within the existing right-of-way on public roads.   
 
AB TO ELABORATE ON THE BIKE/PED STUDY..WAITING FOR DAN STEWART TO RETURN FROM 
VACATION NEXT WEEK TO CONFIRM.  
 
 
 
Describe the specific timeline for design and/or construction of proposed project:  
 
 

Item Description 
Time to Complete 

After Notice of 
Grant Award 

Select Design Consultant to Prepare Plans and Specs for Installation of 
Crosswalk flashing beacon system   

30 days 

Prepare Plans & Specs for Bidding 30 days 

Submit Bidding Documents to MaineDOT for Approval 15 days 

Advertise the Project and Open Bids 25 days 

Analyze Bids with MaineDOT and Award Contract 15 days 

Installation of Crosswalk Flashing Beacon System at Four Crosswalks 90 days 

Final Inspection and Certification of Work Completed to Specifications 15 days 

TOTAL TIME: 220 days 

 
 
 
 
 
Describe the public processes completed and/or planned, including the date(s) of the public meeting(s), 
planning studies completed, groups that have been involved, public support, and date(s) of select board or 
council approval of moving ahead with the project (please attach agenda(s) and/or meeting summaries 
from relevant meetings): 
 
A public process will be incorporated into the development of the bike and pedestrian plan which will provide the 
basis for the top 4 deficient locations in need of crosswalk improvements within Downtown Brunswick and its 
surrounding neighborhoods.   As with any planning process, the Town of Brunswick uses various means to seek 
input from the public.  Methods used include key stakeholder committees, surveys and interviews, public forums, 
day-long events, such as design charrettes and walkabouts, televised committee meetings, presentations to 
neighborhood and civic groups, joint events with the Brunswick Downtown Association, newspaper op-eds, etc.   
 
 
AB TO INCLUDE WEBLINKS OF DMP AND WALKABILITY STUDY TO ILLUSTRATE PUBLIC PROCESS 
FOLLOWED. 
 



 
 
Section 3: Project Budget (funding request including cash match) 
 
Section 3.1 - Estimated cost of infrastructure project (funding request including cash 
match) 
 
NOTE:  In most instances, if the project is approved, (1.) Design/Engineering/Permitting 
and (2.) State and Federal Reviews will be the only stages funded in the 2014-2015 
Biennial Capital Work Plan.  The project will become eligible for construction funding 
once design is complete, contingent upon when federal funding becomes available. 
 
 
Design/Engineering/Permitting (12% of Construction or $10,000, whichever is greater): 1. $12,000 
 
Estimated Right of Way Costs including Appraisal 2. 0 
 
State and Federal Review(s) (5% of Design/Engineering, or $3,000, whichever is greater) 3 3,000 
 
Construction: 4. 100,000 
 
Construction Oversight/Engineering 5. 10,000 
    (10% of Construction or $10,000, whichever is greater) 
 

Total Value of Project as it relates to funding request (add lines 1 through 5): 6. $125,000 
 
Local Match/Voluntary Contributions (Note: All match/voluntary contributions must be detailed. Bonus 
consideration may be given to applications that offer additional match/voluntary contributions beyond any 
applicable required local match.) 
 
 

- Total Local Cash Match (20% minimum for TE projects: % of project 20              7. $            
                                                                                                                

- Additional labor and/or materials contributions (will not count towards local match requirement,  
and should not be listed in above budget items)                                                            8. $       

      
- Please describe local cash match and/or voluntary contributions in DETAIL:          
 
 
POTENTIAL MATCH CONTRIBUTIONS BELOW PROVIDED BY MELISSA FOCHESATO AT THE 
REQUEST OF STAFF.  TO CONFIRM ELIGIBILITY/OBTAIN LETTERS OF COMMITMENT IF TOWN 
COUNCIL AUTHORIZES REQUESTS FOR CONSIDERATION OF BOTH TRANSPORTATION 
ENHANCEMENT AND SRTS FUNDING.    WILL NEED A MINIMUM $25,000 IN MATCH (FUNDING 
AND/OR IN-KIND RESOURCES) IF TE SUBMITTAL IS AUTHORIZED.  ADDITIONAL RESOURCES 
MUST STILL BE IDENTIFIED.     
          
Voluntary contributions: 
-  
- Access Health – Brunswick’s Healthy Maine Partnership, Access Health, will commit staff time 

to partner with Brunswick School Department to expand their Safe Routes to School program, 
with a focus on increasing the number of students who walk and bike to Harriet Beecher Stowe 
Elementary.  Contributions will include: parent and student surveys to identify concerns and 
barriers, recruitment of community volunteers, funding assistance for low cost materials 
needed to expand the program (eg safety vests, bike racks, marketing campaign) or other 
barriers identified by the community (eg bike helmets, way finding signs, stipends for after 
school bike clubs). 

-  
- Summary of Match: $500 mini grant for school needs,  $1500 in kind staff time  
-  



- Merry Meeting Wheelers – a local bike advocacy and safety group will offer bicycle safety 
workshops for Brunswick students, conduct walk and bike audits to identify barriers to youth 
or community members using the new routes, recruitment of volunteers and assistance with 
community awareness campaign. 

-  
- Brunswick School Department: The School Department has been a strong supporter of walking 

and biking to school in the past.  Although the program was put on hiatus in 2011- 2012 with 
the opening of the new school, one event was held during the school year, and the school is 
supportive of continuing this effort and partnering with the town of Brunswick and community 
partners to reinvigorate the efforts.   

-  
- Brunswick Schools will continue to support staff champions to coordinate efforts at both 

elementary schools. 
 

- Brunswick Police Department – the Town of Brunswick will contribute $X to support X crossing 
guards to ensure the safety of children as they walk or bike to school.  

 
 
Funds Requested from MaineDOT:    10.   $ 125,000 (SRTS request only) 
Note:  The sum of Lines 7 and 10 should equal Line 6 above.  $ 100,000 (SRTS w/TE request)  
 
Note: Section 3.2 of this form also requires further details on costs. The amount shown on line 5 on the above 
estimate should match the total outline of costs in Section 3.2, or an explanation must be given for the 
discrepancy.  
 
No discrepancy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Section 3.2 - Detailed Description of Infrastructure Project and Cost  
 
 
Local Force Account:   Does the municipality plan on potentially using local forces to build the project? 
(YES OR NO)   NO 
 
If yes, please include separate detailed construction estimates including design, materials, labor, (labor 
cost per hour including the overhead amount for town forces), mobilization, construction oversight, etc, 
for both town led project, and constructor awarded project.      
 
If yes, please initial to indicate that the municipality is willing to move forward with the project even if force 
account is not approved.       _____N/A__________ 
 
 
If yes, please indicate the cost difference (savings) between a potential local force account led project and 
contractor led project.  N/A 
                                                                                
Note:  The intent of the Federal Aid program is that most projects will be put out to bid and built by 
contractors.   If the municipality believes that the construction portion of the project will save significant 
federal transportation dollars if built with local forces and potentially using local materials, than a process 
is in place to determine if a local project can get approved to do the work with local forces. 
 
 
For all applicants:   Please provide a detailed line item budget for all items from Section 3.1 Feel free to 
provide an attachment.    



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Section 4: Authorized Signatures 
Please initial that you have read and agree to the proposed schedule:            

 Spring of 2013:  Municipalities receive notice of award 
 Before October 31, 2013: Signed agreement with MaineDOT to proceed 
 Before June 30, 2014: Preliminary Design Report completed, or Construction out to bid if funded for 

construction 
 
This signature(s) indicate the willingness/ability to provide the designated level of matching funds and a willingness 
to enter into a municipal/State agreement with the Department requiring the municipality/applicant/sponsor to 
administer the development, design, and construction of the project abiding to federal, State, and local 
requirements.  Signature(s) indicate the understanding and agreement that if the municipality decides to cancel the 
project after funds have been expended, the municipality may be required to reimburse the federal and/or state 
funds already expended.   The applicant will also be responsible for future maintenance of the completed project.  
Note that design should meet all applicable federal and state standards and ADA Guidelines, and as always, 
funding award is contingent upon the availability of federal funding.   
 
A municipal/state agreement with the Maine Department of Transportation is required for the development, design, 
and construction of the project in accordance with federal, state, and local requirements.  
 
Note:  Information on Locally Administered Project (LAP) requirements can be found at:  
http://www.maine.gov/mdot/lap/lpa.php 
 
An authorized representative of the city/town  
 
Municipal Official:  

Name(s):            Title:          

Phone#:            Email:            

Prepared by: John Foster, PE, Town Engineer 7/17/2012

Item Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Cost

Provide & Install Ped. Activated Flashing 
Beacon System (4 signs)

1  ea. 22,000.00$ 22,000.00$      

Provide Cast Iron Detectable Warning Fields 
(DWF) in ramp at both sides of crosswalk

20  s.f. 32.00$         640.00$           

Install DWF in Pre-Cast Concrete 2  ea. 180.00$       360.00$           

Install Pre-Cast DWF in Crosswalk Ramp, 
re-do curb ramp as needed

2  ea. 850.00$       1,700.00$        

Install Crosswalk Pavement Markings 150 s.f. 2.00$           300.00$           

Estimated Total Cost for One Installation 25,000.00$      

Estimated Total Cost for Four Installations 4  ea. 25,000.00$ 100,000.00$    

Detail Estimated Cost for Installation at One Location



 
 
___________________________________________________________________        
_________________________ 
Signature(s)           Date 
 
Local Project Municipal Contact (likely to be the Local Project Administrator) 
 

Name:            Title:          

Phone#:            Email:              

 
 
Send all application information as follows: Applications must be postmarked by August 3rd, 2012. Seven (7) 
complete hardcopy application packages (including all attachments and all required documents) must be submitted 
to:   
         
MaineDOT 
Attn: Daniel Stewart 
Quality Community Program Manager 
Bureau of Transportation Systems Planning 
16 State House Station 
Child Street 
Augusta, ME 04333-0016 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - G 
BACK UP MATERIALS 























 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - H 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 

































 
 

 
Manager’s Report – I and J 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 86 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 









 
 

 
ITEM 87 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: July 16, 2012     
 
RE: Amendment to zoning ordinance     
 
The proposal from the Brunswick Development Corporation (BDC) to exchange the 
Pleasant and Stanwood Street properties for the current Town Office stipulates that the 
current use (office building) be allowed to continue after the Town Departments vacate 
to the McLellan building.  
 
Now that the Council has passed the bond ordinance, it is appropriate that the Planning 
Board be requested to prepare language to amend the zoning ordinance that will satisfy 
the condition of the exchange between the BDC and the Town. 
 
It is the opinion of the Codes Enforcement Office, concurred by Pat Scully, that the 
current language in the zoning ordinance would prohibit the continued use as an office 
building once the building is no longer occupied by Town Departments. It is currently 
allowed by virtue that municipal facilities are allowed in all zoning districts. I am 
attaching a memo from Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development that 
provides the history of the zoning of this area as well as some options to satisfy the 
BDC requirement. 
 
Anna Breinich and I will be available to answer questions at the Council meeting. 
 
 

 .  
 
 



 
June 13, 2012 
 
To:  Gary Brown, Town Manager 
From:  Anna Breinich, AICP 
Subject: 28 Federal Street Reuse as a Non-Municipal Facility 
 
Per your request, we have researched zoning of 28 Federal Street in effect at the time of 
construction of the Municipal Building and, thereafter, to determine if its functional use as an 
office would be considered a legally-established nonconforming use.   
 
In 1959, the Town of Brunswick acquired the 28 Federal Street property.  We are unable to 
confirm whether the Parks and Recreation Building, 30 Federal Street, was also acquired at that 
time or earlier. At the time of purchase and it is assumed, at the time of construction of the 
municipal building, the property was zoned as General Residence.  Municipal Use was a 
permitted use; office use was not.   
 
In 1969, the Zoning Ordinance was significantly updated with the creation of new zoning 
districts and changes made to existing zoning district boundaries.  The west side of Federal Street 
from Mason to Center Street was rezoned from General Residence to C-1, Downtown 
Commercial District.  This district generally included Maine Street from Fort Andross to 
Pleasant Street, then continuing south on the west side of Maine Street to Noble Street.  
Permitted uses included multi-family residential only by “exception” approved by the Board of 
Appeals, a mix of commercial, institutional, recreational and educational uses.  Single-family 
residential was not a permitted use.  With regard to 28 Federal Street, “governmental building or 
facility” was a permitted use as well as offices.  The Municipal Building continued as a 
governmental building or facility use and was not reclassified as an office.   
 
The C-1 Zoning District remained as adopted in 1969 until September 1986, at which time an 
updated zoning ordinance was adopted.  Zoning districts were again redrawn and all previously 
zoned C-1 properties fronting Federal Street where now rezoned a new Intown Residential 11 
District, as was all Federal Street.  Unfortunately the rezoning from C-1 to Intown Residential 11 
created 5 non-conforming uses/properties out of 7 properties located between Mason and Center 
Streets.  For the most part, these non-residential uses were legally established between 1969 and 
1986 and still exist today as nonconforming uses today.  In hindsight, this area should have 
remained C-1. 
 
Presently, as a municipal facility, the town offices and recreation center are permitted uses by 
ownership alone.  As to their functional use, offices and recreational facilities are prohibited uses 
in the current Town Residential 2 Zoning District (TR2) established in 1997, as part of a 

 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 
BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 

 

 

ANNA M. BREINICH, AICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 



comprehensive Town-wide rezoning.  Single-family and multi-family residential uses are the 
only permitted uses in the TR2 District encompassing Federal Street with the exception of an 
area near Cleaveland Street.  Bed and breakfast establishments, greenhouse and florist, 
photographer and artist studios and religious institutions are permitted by Special Permit.  
Therefore, if the existing Town offices and recreation uses are vacated, the buildings/parcels 
cannot be used for the same non-municipal functional use. 
 
Moving forward, the Town can rezone the west side of Federal Street, between Mason and 
Center Streets, back to what is now known as Town Center 1 (formally C-1), thereby reflecting 
the majority of existing nonconforming uses established by right between 1969 and 1986 – 
primarily non-residential uses, compatible with residential uses.  As the Town Core area 
rezoning is already started with a draft combined Town Center District for the Downtown area, it 
would be more appropriate to consider changes in districts/boundaries, consistent with the 2008 
Comprehensive Plan, as part of the larger rezoning effort.   
 
To address the issue at hand, the potential reuse of the municipal facilities based on functional 
use, an option may be to amend the existing municipal facilities standards (Section 306.17) to 
allow the continuation of existing prohibited functional uses of municipal facilities, as a legally-
established nonconforming use.  Essentially, the functional use of the municipal facility would 
be considered non-conforming having the same restrictions as any other nonconforming use 
town-wide.  If considered a viable option, Town Council could request the Planning Board to 
consider and possibly recommend such an amendment to Section 306.17. 
 
Should you need anything further, please let me know. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 88 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: MRRA Board nomination     
 
RE: July 16, 2012     
 
The Town of Brunswick, and other communities impacted by the closure of NASB have 
been invited to submit names to Governor LePage for consideration to be nominated by 
the Governor to the Board of Trustees of the Mid-Coast Regional Redevelopment 
Authority. 
 
Council Leadership has asked me to research the possible nomination of Denise 
Clavette to the MRRA Board. Based on communications that I have had with staff from 
the Governor’s office, one of the openings under consideration is one of the so-called 
State-wide appointments. Denise recently relocated from Cumberland County to York 
County and is eligible for that position, should she be appointed by the Governor. 
 
I have also discussed this with staff from the Office of Economic Adjustment 
(OEA).OEA provides funding for Denise’s job through a grant to MRRA. The grant has 
already been submitted to OEA for the next fiscal year and staff at OEA does not see a 
problem with her being on the MRRA board and being partially funded from their grant 
to MRRA. 
 
Denise has been employed as our liaison to base closing issues for the past two plus 
years. In that capacity she has been exposed to every issue that has been going on 
between the Town and base redevelopment matters. Some of her work has included 
not only dealing with MRRA, but also Bowdoin College, MDEP EPA, NAVFAC, Navy 
PMO and many other organizations. She currently is the most informed staff person on 
matters related to the redevelopment of the base. There are presently two MRRA Board 
members that have similar municipal positions as Denise and their appointments were 
not determined to be a problem by the current or former Administration, nor members of 
the Legislature. 
 
 

 .  
 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
July 9, 2012 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Joanne T. King, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, Suzan 

Wilson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah 
E. Brayman, and E. Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None  
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

Town Manager; Richard Rizzo, Police Chief;  John Eldridge, Finance 
Director; Marc Hagan, Deputy Police Chief; Don Koslosky, Deputy 
Fire Chief; Russ Wrede, Police Sergeant; members of the Police 
Department; and TV video crew  

 
Chair King called the meeting to order, asked for the Pledge of Allegiance, and for roll call. 
 
Public Comment:  
 
Jorge Maderal, 4 Windward Walk, thanked the Town Council for allowing his group 
(Midcoast Veterans Council) to tour the old Times Record building, but due to the high 
amount of repairs needed, they will not be pursuing this building. 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Chair King stated she will not be running for reelection this fall. 
 
Councilor Perreault said a citizen was inquiring when the Town might start the planning for 
the 275th Anniversary of Brunswick becoming a town. 
 
Councilor Brayman spoke regarding the new photographs on display in the Council Chamber 
that were provided by Michael Kolster. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
Move the Manager’s Report to after the Public Hearing items. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
Reports were given on the Master Plan Implementation Committee and Cable TV Committee. 
 
(b) Accept MMA grant to purchase traffic cones (Action Required) 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to allow the Town to accept 
and expend a MMA grant to assist in the funding to replace 245 traffic cones at a total 



Town Council Minutes 
July 9, 2012 
Page 2 
 

 
 

cost of $2,966. The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left the 
meeting prior to the vote. 
 
(A copy of an email from Captain Waltz from the March 19th meeting is included in your 
packet.) 
 
(c) Permission to apply for AFG grant (Action Required) 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to allow the Town to apply for 
an AFG grant for the Fire Department in the amount of $43,000 to assist with ARFF 
and Hazmat training. The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left 
the meeting prior to the vote. 
 
(A copy of the project’s description will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(d) Appointment of Brunswick representative to the MMA legislative committee 

(Action Required) 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to appoint Councilor Pols as 
Brunswick’s representative on the MMA Legislative Policy Committee.  The motion 
carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left the meeting prior to the vote. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to appoint Councilor Tucker as 
the alternate to the MMA Legislative Policy Committee.  The motion carried with eight 
(8) yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left the meeting prior to the vote. 
 
(e) Election of MMA’s 2012-2014 Legislative Policy Committee member (Action 

Required)  
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to support Abbe Yacoben for 
the MMA 2012-2014 Legislative Policy Committee.  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left the meeting prior to the vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
83. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special 

Amusement License application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
1337 Beer LLC 
D/B/A: Lion’s Pride   Christopher and Jennifer Lively 
110 Pleasant Street 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
July 9, 2012 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to approve a Special 
Amusement License application for The Lion’s Pride, located at 110 Pleasant Street. 
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
84. The Town Council will hear public comments on “An Ordinance Authorizing the 

Design, Construction, and Equipping of a New Police Station and Related 
Improvements at the southeast corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Streets, 
Brunswick, Maine, with Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $5,635,814 (plus any 
other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds 
and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $5,500,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any 
Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate 
action. (Chair King, Councilor Watson, Councilor Tucker, Councilor Perreault, 
Councilor Brayman) 

 
Manager Brown and Chair King spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair King opened the public hearing. 
 
The following people spoke regarding this item: 

Debbie Brisbois 78 Jordan Avenue 
Sonia Moeller, 48 McLellan Street 
Tom Fusco, 66 Board Road 
Louise Rosen, 16 High Street 
Judy Gorby, 2 Westminster Avenue 
Chris Teel, 2 Hennessey Avenue  
Claudia Knox, 36 Cumberland Street, 
Kathy Wilson, 144 Pleasant Street 
Vicky Marr, 34 Cumberland Street 
Judy Warren, 9 Longfellow Avenue 
Karen Klatt, 32 Moody Road 
Dan Harris, 1 Mountain Ash Avenue 
John Donovan, 11 McKeen Street 

 
Chair King closed the public hearing.  
 
MOTION 
Chair King moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “An Ordinance Authorizing 
the Design, Construction, and Equipping of a New Police Station and Related 
Improvements at the southeast corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Streets, Brunswick, 
Maine, with Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $5,635,814 (plus any other costs 
authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an 
Amount not to Exceed $5,500,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”   
 
The Council members asked questions and made comments on this agenda item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
July 9, 2012 
Page 4 
 

 
 

AMENDMENT TO MOTION 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to amend the motion to have this 
item sent out to referendum.  The motion failed with two (2) yeas.  Councilor Watson, 
Councilor Tucker, Councilor Wilson, Chair King, Councilor Favreau, Councilor 
Knight, Councilor Pols were opposed. 
 
There was additional Council discussion. 
 
MAIN MOTION 
Chair King moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “An Ordinance Authorizing 
the Design, Construction, and Equipping of a New Police Station and Related 
Improvements at the southeast corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Streets, Brunswick, 
Maine, with Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $5,635,814 (plus any other costs 
authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an 
Amount not to Exceed $5,500,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance will be attached to the official minutes.)  
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
85. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
 
Councilor Watson nominated the following: 
 
Elizabeth Marr to serve on the Village Review Board as resident representative.  This 
nomination was supported by seven Councilors.  Councilor Wilson did not vote. 
 
Raymond Trombley to serve on the Marine Resources Committee as harvester member.  This 
nomination was supported by the eight (8) Councilors present. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Approval of the Minutes of June 18, 2012 
(b) Approval of the Minutes of June 4, 2012 
(c) Approval of the Minutes of May 31, 2012 
(d) Approval of the Minutes of June 28, 2012 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left the meeting 
prior to the vote. 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Tucker had left the meeting prior to the 
vote. 



Town Council Minutes 
July 9, 2012 
Page 5 
 

 
 

 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
July 11, 2012 

July 23, 2012 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 

 
 

RELEASE DEED 
 
The TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, a Maine municipal corporation, located in Brunswick, Cumberland 
County, Maine with a mailing address of 28 Federal Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011-1583, FOR 
CONSIDERATION PAID, releases to BOULAY PROPERTIES, LLC, a Maine limited liability 
company with a mailing address of 32 Federal Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011-1528, all its right, 
title and interest, in and to, certain real property, situated in Brunswick, Cumberland County, Maine, 
shown on Map U13, Lot 53 on the assessor’s maps of the Town of Brunswick, Maine, on file in the 
Office of the Assessor, Town Hall, Brunswick, Maine, which was acquired by virtue of a tax lien 
recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 4391, Pages 103. 
 
Conveyed subject to and excepting rights and easements contained in a certain indenture by and 
among the Town of Brunswick, Terrace Place, LLC and Boulay Properties, LLC dated May 22, 
2007 and recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Book 25222, Page 63 which are 
specifically not released. 
 
The Town conveying hereunder no other interests; and further, excepting and reserving from this 
conveyance any liens securing payment of property taxes on the premises as are not currently due or 
payable. 
 
The said Town of Brunswick, has caused this instrument to be signed in its corporate name by Gary 
Brown, its Town Manager, duly authorized, this _____ day of July, 2012. 
 
ATTEST:     THE TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
       
           
__________________________  By:  _________________________ 
Print Name:             Gary Brown 
              Its Town Manager 
 
State of Maine 
County of Cumberland, ss.       July ____, 2012 
 
 PERSONALLY APPEARED the above-named Gary Brown, Town Manager, of the Town 
of Brunswick, and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in his said 
capacity and the free act and deed of said Town of Brunswick. 
 
                                       Before me, 
 
                                     _________________________ 
                                    Name:  Frances M. Smith 
            Notary Public  
      Notary commission expires: January 23, 2015 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



C:\Documents and Settings\fsmith\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZM62NAGF\Standing Order 
RE_Declarations of Official Intent (2).docx 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
 

A Standing Order Authorizing the Treasurer to Issue Declarations of Official Intent  
on Behalf of the Town of Brunswick, Maine 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Town”) intends to fund various projects and 
acquisitions in the future through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds or notes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town may use the proceeds of such bonds or notes to reimburse the Town for 
expenditures made with respect to the financed projects or acquisitions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 requires that an issuer of bonds or notes must 
declare its official intent to reimburse expenditures made with respect to the projects financed with the 
bonds or notes no later than sixty (60) days after the payment of such expenditures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2(e)(1) states that an appropriate representative of the 
issuer may declare official intend on behalf of the issuer; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Town does hereby order: 
 

1. The Town Treasurer is authorized to issue declarations of official intent pursuant to Treasury 
Regulation Section 1.150-2. 
 

2. Such declarations of official intent shall be countersigned and maintained by the Town Clerk 
 

3. Such declarations of official intent shall be available for public inspection during normal business 
hours of the Town until the date of issuance of the bonds or notes to which the declaration 
applies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed to Town Council: June 18, 2012 
 
Adopted by Town Council: 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

 

 

Brunswick, Maine 
John A. Foster, PE 
Town Engineer/Director PWD 
e-mail:  foster@brunswickme.org 

Public Works Department 
9 Industry Road 
Brunswick, Maine  04011 
(207) 725-6654  
FAX (207) 725-6655 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 TO: Gary Brown, Town Manager 

 FROM: John A. Foster, Director, PWD 

 DATE: July 16, 2012 

 SUBJECT: Utility Location Permit  

 

 
 

Attached, for presentation to the Town Council is an application for a Utility Location 
Permit received from FairPoint (Northern New England Telephone Operations LLC). 
 
In application ULP 2012-05, Pleasant St & Stanwood St 

 

    FairPoint seeks authorization to install 
an underground telecommunication duct from a utility pole on Stanwood Street, the utility pole to 
be installed on at the southeast corner of the laundry mat, to a telecommunication manhole 
located in the sidewalk on Pleasant Street. There will be about 173 feet of duct on Stanwood 
Street and about 300 feet of new duct on Pleasant Street. Installation of this telecommunication 
duct is a result of the Town’s request for redesign of the Pleasant St and Stanwood St intersection 
associated with construction of the new Police Station.   

 
Brunswick Public Works Department has no objection to this underground utility line as 
proposed, providing it is approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

 
1. The final location is subject to adjustment, as determined necessary by the 

Town Engineer, to provide adequate clearance from any underground 
facilities as determined by field verification by each utility. 

2. All work is subject to compliance with the Town’s Street Opening and road 
restoration requirements. 

 










	july 23 2012 agd.pdf
	part 1Binder1
	mr a no
	mr b no
	mr c no
	mr d yes
	mr d mma ballot_20120717084617
	mr e yes
	MR E Tree AMTRACK

	part 2 Binder1
	mr f yes
	mr f a SRTS-TE Application Memo
	mr f b 2012TEsaferoutesapplicationJAF
	mr g yes
	mr h yes
	mr i and j no

	part 3 Binder1
	86 yes
	86 magee app_20120717084519
	87 yes
	87 July 16 memo regarding rezoning of 28 Federal Street
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	87 Anna memo 28 Federal Street Reuse
	88 yes
	88 July 16 memo regarding MRRA Nomination
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	ca a yes
	ca a july 9 2012 min
	ca b yes
	CA b July 23 Brunswick Release Deed
	ca c yes
	ca c July 23 Standing Order RE_Declarations of Official Intent _2_
	ca d yes
	ca d FairPointUtilityLocationPermitULP2012-05
	ManagerLocationNoticeJuly16,2012.pdf
	Brunswick, Maine
	MEMORANDUM






